AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CARO CITY COUNCIL
February 17, 2026, 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER (Pledge of Allegiance)

AGENDA APPROVAL

PRESENTATION:
1. Exchange Forest Annual Report — June Kennedy
2. WSP Presentation — Well 9 & 10

PUBLIC COMMENTS — AGENDA ITEMS ONLY

COMMUNICATION:
1. Letter from Tim Murphy, Publisher, The Advertiser

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Regular Council Meeting Minutes — February 2, 2026

2. Invoices
3. Department Reports
A. Police Report — Chief Brian Newcomb
e Police 2025 Annual Report
B. Fire Report — Chief Randall Heckroth
C. Code Enforcement Report — Jon Beaupre

REGULAR AGENDA:

Exchange Club Forest Stewardship Renewal
DDA Budget Line-ltem Adjustment Request
Well 9 & 10 Drilling Bids

Mid-Year Budget Adjustments Request
WWTP Budget Adjustment Request
2025/2026 Sidewalk Special Assessment Roll
Investment Maturing

NOOhWD =

ITEMS POSTPONED: None

COMMITTEE/LIAISON POSITION REPORTS:

Economic Development Corporation (Mayor Snider)
Chamber of Commerce (Manager)

Downtown Development Authority (Kish)

Fair Board (Oedy)

Parks & Recreation (White)

Planning Commission (Vacant)

Tuscola County Board of Commissioners (Parker)
Zoning Board of Appeals (Mayor Snider)

PN R LN~

MAYOR’S REPORT - Written report submitted
MANAGER REPORT - Written report submitted



CLERK’S REPORT - Written report submitted
TREASURER’S REPORT — Written report submitted
ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENTS

ADJOURN






are not scrolling Facebook or navigating third-party bid websites. They depend on their
local newspaper to know what their government is doing. Eliminating that avenue of
notice effectively sidelines a segment of the population from the public process. That
should concern every council member.

Trust in local government is built through openness. Removing a long-standing practice
without broad discussion erodes that trust. This decision affects more than a newspaper. It
affects how the public is informed about how their tax dollars are spent.

The current city manager does not appear to support public transparency through
newspapers. One of the first questions he asked me when | met him more than a year ago
was my opinion on public notices. He followed that up last month by referencing “the
decline in relevance to newspaper advertising” as part of his reasoning for recommending
the elimination of bid notices in The Advertiser. We are the oldest business in this town. We
pay taxes and employ local residents. Yet our city manager made that statementin the
public record.

What will be next that the council allows him to absurdly editorialize into public record?
That localinsurance agents are irrelevant because of Geico, Progressive or Liberty? Or that
local real estate agents are unnecessary because of Zillow?

To the city manager’s credit, he did call and apologize. He stated, “l apologize you
misinterpreted my comment.” [ plan on using that apology line with my wife
someday. | will let everyone know how that goes.

The Advertiser and the City of Caro have had a strong working relationship for many
years. It has been more than 20 years since | shook City Manager David Murphy’s hand
and agreed | would always run council minutes for $25 because we mutually valued
transparency. | have honored that agreement to this day. However, transparency has
since shifted to running minutes only every other meeting, which in itself raises
guestions about the direction we are heading.

I respectfully ask the council to revisit the bid notice decision, obtain a formal legal opinion
and engage the public in discussion before implementing a blanket policy change. This is
not about print versus digital. It is about transparency, accountability and maintaining
public trust.

Sadly, that is not the feeling | am getting from City Hall right now. It appears someone is
attempting to pick a fight without properly researching the potential consequences.

Sincerel

v

Tim Murphy g
Publisher, The Advertiser



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CARO CITY COUNCIL
February 2, 2026, 6:30 P.M.
Council Chambers, 317 S. State St., Caro, Ml 48723

Mayor Karen Snider called the regular meeting of the City Council to order on February 2, 2026, at
6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

Present: Mayor Karen Snider, City Council: Emily Campbell, Charlotte KlSh Doreen Oedy, Heidi
Parker, John Riley, and Jill White. ; .

Absent: None

Others: Scott Czasak — City Manager, Rita Papp — City Cl asurer, and

other guests.
AGENDA APPROVAL

26-M-20 ,
Motion by White, seconded by Riley, to approve the agenda as presented.with addition of
Communications, #3 — Email from Evan Osentos
Motion Carried.

PRESENTATION: Mike Carpenter, Rowe Engineering ids

COMMUNICATIONS:
1. Charter Communications — U
2. Parks & Recreation Committe

oming Changes
Meeting Minute

Sean Smith - S ted the placement of the Lion Head Drinking Fountain and the Reallocation of

Funds.

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Regular Council Meeting Minutes — January 20, 2026
2. Invoices

26-M-21

Motion by Parker, seconded by White, to approve the consent agenda as presented including
invoices.

Motion Carried.



REGULAR AGENDA: (action required)
1. 2026 Sidewalk Bids

26-M-22
Motion by White, seconded by Riley, to award the 2026 Sidewalk Replacement project to AJ
Remus & Son for the bid amount of $219,407.50, pending final approval of the special
assessment.

Roll call vote: Campbell - yes, Kish — no, Oedy - yes, Parker — yes, Rlley yes, White — yes,
Mayor Snider — no.

Motion carried.

2. Budget Line-ltem Adjustment Request — Printing & de’i»iéﬁait'iens =

26-M-23
Motion by Kish, seconded by Campbell, to approve an inc
within the Clerk’s Department General Fund, 101-260-960-00
amount of $10,000.00, increasing the total budget from $15,
from General Fund.
Motion carried

3. Lion Head Drinking Fountain — Bieth Park = Ci

26-M-24 4 :
Motion by White, seconded by Rlley, to place the Lio Head Drmkang Fountain in Bieth Park.

Motion carried

4. Parks & Recreation Capital Improvements Reallocation Request — Councilor White

26-M-25 r
Motion by Oedy,
Committee to reallo
$10,000.00 for Lion He
Kayak Launch Fe

:nded by Pa -to approve the request from Parks & Recreation
' 5,000.00 to: $3,500.00 for picnic tables, $16,000.00 for shade,
rmkmg Fountain $500 00 for Pickle Ball Equipment, $15,000.00 for

3

yes, Parker - yes, Riley — yes, White — yes, Campbell — yes,

Motion by Oedy, seconded by Campbell, to keep the CDARS at Independent Bank in the
amount of $539,702.82 for 52 weeks at 3.30%.

Roll call vote: Oedy — yes, Parker — yes, Riley — yes, White — yes, Campbell — yes, Kish — yes,
Mayor Snider — yes.

Motion carried






Check Register - Council Meeting
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026

CITY OF CARO

Page: 1
Feb 12, 2026 09:01AM

Report Criteria:
Report type: GL detail
Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

GL
Period

Check
Issue Date

Check
Number

Invoice GL Account

Invoice GL Account Title

Amount

#3224 BUILDING ASSOCIATION

02/26

02/17/2026

79923

248-728-922-000

Total #3224 BUILDING ASSOCIATION:

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-253-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-751-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-172-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-702-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-260-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 202-483-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-262-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 203-483-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26  02/17/2026 800355 101-301-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-371-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 590-540-740-001 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-441-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 591-540-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 596-521-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 -02/17/2026 800355 204-483-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 661-575-776-000 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-301-725-000 UNIFORMS/UNIFORM EQUIPMENT
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-301-744-000 INVESTIGATIVE SUPPLIES
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-301-744-000 INVESTIGATIVE SUPPLIES
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES
02/26 02/17/2026 800355 216-336-750-000 TECHNOLOGY

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-441-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 591-540-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES

02/26 02/17/2026 800355 101-441-776-001 0O&M SUPPLIES

Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES:

AUTO-WARES GROUP

02/26 02/17/2026 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

800356 661-575-776-000
Total AUTO-WARES GROUP:

BRIGHTSPEED

02/26 02/17/2026 800357 590-540-853-000 TELEPHONE

02/26 02/17/2026 800357 591-540-853-000 TELEPHONE

02/26 02/17/2026 800357 101-172-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T
02/26  02/17/2026 800357 101-253-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T
02/26  02/17/2026 800357 101-260-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T
02/26 02/17/2026 800357 101-301-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGEE'T
02/26 02/17/2026 800357 216-336-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T
02/26  02/17/2026 800357 661-575-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T
02/26 02/17/2026 800357 590-540-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEM

86.73

86.73

1.67
1.67
1.67
1.67
1.67
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
1.66
25.99
13.98
16.99
17.32
29.99
164.53
164.53
20.50

482.10

190.00

190.00

77.65
77.64
36.87
36.87
36.87
36.87
36.87
36.86
36.86




CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting Page: 2
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026 Feb 12, 2026 09:01AM
GL Check Check invoice GL Account invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
02/26 02/17/2026 800357 248-728-801-000 DDA CONTRACTED SERVICES 36.86
Total BRIGHTSPEED: 450.22
BUSY BEE CLEANING
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 101-441-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 123.50
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 216-336-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 52.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 101-301-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 97.50
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 101-172-801-002 CONTRACTED SERV - JANITORIAL 91.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 101-260-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 91.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 101-253-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 91.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800358 590-540-801-002 CONTRACTED SERYV - JANITORIAL 104.00
Total BUSY BEE CLEANING: 650.00
CARO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
02/26 02/17/2026 79924 101-000-675-000 MISC INCOME 65.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79924 248-728-900-000 ADVERTISING 286.29
Total CARO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE: 351.29
CASS CITY HARDWARE
02/26 02/17/2026 79925 591-540-760-000 POSTAGE 12.00
Total CASS CITY HARDWARE: 12.00
CINTAS
02/26 02/17/2026 79926 101-441-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 7.53
Total CINTAS: 7.53
CITY OF CARO
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-265-922-000 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 134,32
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-441-922-000 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 723.03
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-703-922-000 WATER/SEWER/SAN 13.63
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-703-922-000 WATER/SEWER/SAN 13.63
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-751-922-000 WATER/SEWER 2273
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-703-922-000 WATER/SEWER/SAN 22.73
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 101-751-922-000 WATER/SEWER 27.26
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 216-336-922-000 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 227.30
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 248-728-922-000 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 42.07
02/26 02/17/2026 79927 590-540-922-000 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 382.40
Total CITY OF CARO: 1,609.10
DELTA COLLEGE
02/26 02/17/2026 79928 101-301-960-000 EDUCATION & TRAINING, DUES 1,685.00
Total DELTA COLLEGE: 1,685.00
DUNN HARDWARE & SUPPLY, INC.
79929 101-441-776-001 O&M SUPPLIES 377.76

02/26

02/17/2026




Page:

3

Feb 12,2026 09:01AM

CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026
GL Check Check Invoice GL Account Invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
Total DUNN HARDWARE & SUPPLY, INC.: 377.76
ELECTION SOURCE
02/26 02/17/2026 79930 101-262-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,710.00
Total ELECTION SOURCE: 1,710.00
EMTERRA ENVIRONMENTAL USA CORP
02/26 02/17/2026 800359 596-521-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 18,635.32
02/26 02/17/2026 800359 596-521-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 22,412.15
Total EMTERRA ENVIRONMENTAL USA CORP: 41,047 .47
GAMBLES DO IT BEST HARDWARE
02/26 02/17/2026 79931 591-540-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 52.54
02/26 02/17/2026 79931 101-265-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 196.97
02/26 02/17/2026 79931 590-540-776-000 OM&R SUPPLIES NORMAL 139.99
02/26 02/17/2026 79931 101-265-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 12.72
Total GAMBLES DO IT BEST HARDWARE: 402.22
GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES LABOR COUNCIL
02/26 02/17/2026 800360 101-000-231-005 GELC UNION DUES WITHHOLDING 385.00
Total GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES LABOR COUNCIL: 385.00
GRAINGER
02/26 02/17/2026 800361 590-540-776-000 OM&R SUPPLIES NORMAL 860.40
02/26 02/17/2026 800361 590-540-776-000 OM&R SUPPLIES NORMAL 2,672.76
Total GRAINGER: 3,533.16
HACH COMPANY
02/26 02/17/2026 79932 590-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,455.00
Total HACH COMPANY: 1,455.00
J.E. JOHNSON INC
02/26 02/17/2026 800362 101-265-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 225.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800362 590-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 480.00
Total J.E. JOHNSON INC: 705.00
KEELY HILDINGER
02/26 02/17/2026 79942 591-000-255-000 WATER RENTER DEPOSITS 150.00
Total KEELY HILDINGER: 150.00
LARSEN GRAPHICS, INC.
02/26 02/17/2026 800363 101-301-970-000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 683.50

10



Page:

4

Feb 12,2026 09:01AM

CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026
GL Check Check Invoice GL Account Invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
Total LARSEN GRAPHICS, INC.: 683.50
MEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANY
02/26 02/17/2026 800364 202-483-970-000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 21,201.18
Total MEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANY: 21,201.18
MES SERVICE COMPANY LLC
02/26 02/17/2026 800365 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 393.79
Total MES SERVICE COMPANY LLC: 393.79
MIAPPRAISALS.COM
02/26 02/17/2026 79933 101-172-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 400.00
Total MIAPPRAISALS.COM: 400.00
MICHIGAN CAT
02/26 02/17/2026 79934 661-575-776-000 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 134.79
02/26 02/17/2026 79934 661-575-930-000 CONTRACTED REPAIRS 1,679.35
Total MICHIGAN CAT: 1,714.14
MICHIGAN DIVERSIFIED SERVICES LLC
02/26 02/17/2026 79935 591-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 250.00
Total MICHIGAN DIVERSIFIED SERVICES LLC: 250.00
MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE-SAGINAW
02/26 02/17/2026 800366 591-540-970-000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 310.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800366 591-540-970-001 CAPITAL OUTLAY - METERS 465.00
Total MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE-SAGINAW: 775.00
MICHIGAN WATER ENVIRONMENT ASSOCIATION
02/26 02/17/2026 800367 590-540-960-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING 180.00
Total MICHIGAN WATER ENVIRONMENT ASSOCIATION: 180.00
POLICE OFFICERS LABOR COUCIL
02/26 02/17/2026 800368 101-000-231-004 POLC UNION DUES WITHHOLDING 371.00
Total POLICE OFFICERS LABOR COUCIL: 371.00
PREMIER AERIAL & FLEET INSPECT
02/26 02/17/2026 79936 661-575-930-000 CONTRACTED REPAIRS 1,770.95
Total PREMIER AERIAL & FLEET INSPECT: 1,770.95
R&R TECHNICAL SERVICES
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-172-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 200.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-253-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 157.50

11



CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting Page: 5
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026 Feb 12, 2026 09:01AM
GL Check Check Invoice GL Account Invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-260-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 132.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-301-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 412.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-441-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 162.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 216-336-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 62.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 590-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 125.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 591-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 75.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 596-521-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 37.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-265-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 108.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-751-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 25.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-371-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 25.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-172-853-000 TELEPHONE 55.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-253-853-000 TELEPHONE 27.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-260-853-000 TELEPHONE 27.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-371-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.50
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-702-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-441-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-703-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-301-853-000 TELEPHONE & PAGERS 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 202-483-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 203-483-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 204-483-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 248-728-853-000 TELEPHONE & TECHNOLOGY 55.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 216-336-853-000 TELEPHONE 55.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 590-540-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 591-540-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 596-560-853-000 TELEPHONE 20.45
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 661-575-853-000 TELEPHONE 55.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-101-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 90.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79937 101-101-750-000 TECHNOLOGY 575.00
Total R&R TECHNICAL SERVICES: 2,688.00
REVIZE LLC
02/26 02/17/2026 79938 101-172-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 4,425.00
Total REVIZE LLC: 4,425.00
ROBERT RUSHLO
02/26 02/17/2026 79939 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 155.84
Total ROBERT RUSHLO: 155.84
SHULTS EQUIPMENT, LLC
02/26 02/17/2026 800369 661-575-930-000 CONTRACTED REPAIRS 408.60
Total SHULTS EQUIPMENT, LLC: 408.60
SNOW WORKS
02/26 02/17/2026 79940 661-575-930-000 CONTRACTED REPAIRS 700.00
02/26 02/17/2026 79940 661-575-776-000 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,228.18
Total SNOW WORKS: 1,928.18

12



CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting Page: 6
Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026 Feb 12,2026 09:01AM
GL Check Check Invoice GL Account Invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
STAPLES
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-101-740-000 SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT 45.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-172-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 45.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-253-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 52.98
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-260-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 45.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-262-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 45.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-371-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 49,22
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-441-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 101-751-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 45.63
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 49.22
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 590-540-740-001 OFFICE SUPPLIES 115.32
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 591-540-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 69.68
02/26 02/17/2026 800370 596-521-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 20.47
Total STAPLES: 588.67
TEAM FINANCIAL GROUP
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-172-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-253-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-260-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-301-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGEE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-371-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEM 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-441-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 216-336-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 101-751-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.16
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 590-540-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEM 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 591-540-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEM 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 596-521-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEM 33.17
02/26 02/17/2026 800371 661-575-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 33.14
Total TEAM FINANCIAL GROUP: 398.00
TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC
02/26 02/17/2026 800372 591-540-777-000 STATE WATER TESTING & PERMITS 43.50
Total TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC: 43.50
TUSCOLA COUNTY ADVERTISER
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-800-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 67.50
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-800-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 243.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-900-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 324.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-800-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 67.50
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-900-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 324.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-900-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 67.50
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-900-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 324.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-900-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 25.00
02/26 02/17/2026 800373 101-260-800-000 PRINTING & PUBLICATION 67.50
Total TUSCOLA COUNTY ADVERTISER: 1,510.00
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
02/26 02/17/2026 79941 101-265-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 34.72
02/26 02/17/2026 79941 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 44,74

13



CITY OF CARO Check Register - Council Meeting Page: 7

Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2026 - 2/17/2026 Feb 12, 2026 09:01AM
GL Check Check Invoice GL Account Invoice GL Account Title Amount
Period Issue Date Number
02/26 02/17/2026 79941 590-540-776-000 OM&R SUPPLIES NORMAL 38.09
02/26 02/17/2026 79941 101-265-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 35.30
02/26 02/17/2026 79941 101-265-776-000 O&M SUPPLIES 26.90
Total UNIFIRST CORPORATION: 179.75
USA BLUEBOOK
02/26 02/17/2026 800374 590-540-776-001 LAB SUPPLIES 3,700.01
Total USA BLUEBOOK: 3,700.01
WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP
02/26 02/17/2026 800375 216-336-740-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 197.78
Total WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP: 197.78
WSP USA ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE INC
02/26 02/17/2026 79943 591-540-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 6,048.75
Total WSP USA ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE INC: 6,048.75
Grand Totals: 105,301.22
Report Criteria:

Report type: GL detail
Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment”

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



| | N | —
«;H.,J«.« CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT é.\@s..\m
v AWARD | v

OFFICER RYAN AVERY

In August of 2024, Officers Ryan Avery and David Peters responded to a report of a
retail fraud involving a suspect, Lawrence Braggs, age 52 who was attempting to flee
Walmart located at 1121 E.Caro Road following an attempted Retail Fraud. Mr. Braggs
is a known felon who was also wanted on outstanding warrants from previous crimes
committed in multiple counties.Braggs is a known organized Retail Fraud offender. In
their attempt to apprehend Braggs, a foot chase ensued in which the suspect was
eventually apprehended by Officers Avery and Peters. Due to their Professional
Excellence in handling this case with an habitual offender, Officers Avery and Peters

are honored with the Caro Police Department Professional Excellence award.

Awarded December 2025  CHIEF OF POLICE

A BRIAN V. NEWCOMB | SOUVA 2l @\
D —



CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT - RIA
~ AWARD

OFFICER DAVID PETERS

In August of 2024, Officers Ryan Avery and David Peters responded to a report of a
retail fraud involving a suspect, Lawrence Braggs, age 52 who was attempting to flee
Walmart located at 1121 E.Caro Road following an attempted Retail Fraud. Mr. Braggs
is a known felon who was also wanted on outstanding warrants from previous crimes
committed in multiple counties.Braggs is a known organized Retail Fraud offender. In
their attempt to apprehend Braggs, a foot chase ensued in which the suspect was
eventually apprehended by Officers Avery and Peters. Due to their Professional
Excellence in handling this case with an habitual offender, Officers Avery and Peters
are honored with the Caro Police Department Professional Excellence award.

CHIEF OF POLICE
Awarded December 2025 BRIAN V. NEWCOMB




MW@# O>_N0 POLICE DEPARTMENT Aruﬂfv
f AWARD
OFFICER DAVID PETERS
On June 24, 2024, Officer _umﬁmam vaozama t6"37 Elmdor Dr.
Apt #201 in the City of Caro to a report of a medical emergency
involving a Seizure and cardiac arrest. C_oo: arrival, it was
determined that the patient, JESSICA BURSLER, age 34 was
. 5 full cardiac arrest. Cardio Pulmonary Resusitation and
N:e can was administered and a heart beat re-established
out the mmonm of Officer Peters, the patient would ha
- | expired.
Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police |
A | o Brian V. Newcomb. __" , e 6
L —E



CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT: °L3
"~ AWARD ¢
OFFICER SAMUEL GAISER

On August 1, 2024, Officer Samuel Om_wmq responded to 240 E.
Grant Street in the City of Caro 8 a Bco: of a medical
mBm@m:Q _:<o_<_:© a Seizure and cardiac arrest. Upon m:_<m,,_.,_
it was determined that the patient, PATRICIA WELCH, age mw
‘was in full cardiac arrest. Cardio Pulmonary Resusitation wa
,mas,,_,:_mﬁmqma and a heart beat re-established. Without the
fforts of Officer Gaiser, the patient would have expired

Awarded Dmomi_mmwma_mm ~ Chief of Police
| | Brian V. Newcomb. _

e




Mvra.. CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT * .&M
| " AWARD
OFFICER RYAN AVERY

On February 20, 2025, Officer-Robert Gaiser and Officer Ryan

~ Avery responded to Schall Elementary School in the City of
~ Caro to a report of a medical emergency involving a Seizure
~and cardiac arrest. Upon arrival, it was determined that the
vmﬁ_ma STEVEN SCHWARTZ, age 48 was in full cardiac
st. Cardio Pulmonary Resusitation was administered an
Ummﬂ re-established. Without the efforts of Officers G :
m:a ><m_.<. the patient would have expired

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police

Brian V. Newcomb 7 NV N
| A



P

CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT ¢
"~ AWARD

OFFICER ROBERT GAISER

- On February 20, 2025, Officer-Robert Gaiser and Officer Ryan
~ Avery responded to Schall Elementary mnsoo_ in the City of
quo to a report of a medical emergency _:<o_<5@ a Seizure
and cardiac arrest. Upon arrival, it was determined that the
_ patient, STEVEN SCHWARTZ, age 48 was in full cardiac

st. Om_d_o _uc_..:o:mé mmmcm:m:o: was maB_:_mﬁmﬁma an

m:a ><m? the vmcma would have mxv:ma

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police ,
Brian V. Newcomb. __£ N e e




O>_NQ POLICE DEPARTMENT-
( AWARD

LIEUTENANT RYAN AVERY

On August 22, 2025, Lieutenant Ryan Avery was in the City of
Midland, Mi where a photographic session was underway for his

~ wedding engagement. The photographer, the Wife of Trooper

M. Daniel was discovered unresponsive with a cardiac issue
due to a problem pregnancy. Lt. Avery rushed her to Mid
lichigan Medical Center, saving her and the unborn child
ut the efforts of Lt. Avery, the patients would have exp

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police

&

Brian V. Newcomb _2



o | —¥
Mv,@a CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT - ﬁ»‘m
"~ AWARD

OFFICER DAVID PETERS

s
e
~

On March 16, 2025, Officers Bryan Eschenbacher and David
Peters responsed to a medical emergency at 133 S. State Street in
the City of Caro wherein the patient, Wade Waterman, age 39 was
suffering a reported seizure. Officers determined that Cardiac
Pulmonary Resusitation was warranted. They administered CPR
__and ultimately resusitated Mr. Waterman. Without the efforts of
. Officers Eschenbacher and Peters, the patient would have expired.

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police

Brian V. Newcomb -
2,
e




CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT - L
" AWARD

OFFICER BRYAN ESCHENBACHER

On March 16, 2025, Officers Bryan Eschenbacher and David
Peters responsed to a medical emergency at 133 S. State Street in
the City of Caro wherein the patient, Wade Waterman, age 39 was
suffering a reported seizure. Officers determined that Cardiac
Pulmonary Resusitation was warranted. They administered CPR
and ultimately resusitated Mr. Waterman. Without the efforts of
Officers Eschenbacher and Peters, the patient would have expired.

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police ,‘
: Brian V. Newcomb __ 2"




»mm@

CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT é.««ﬂ
"~ AWARD
OFFICER DREW WESSELS

On June 6,2025, Officers Drew Wessels and Samuel Gaiser
responsed to a medical emergency at 1015 Turner Drive apt C1 in
the City of Caro wherein the patient,Jennifer Wright, age 49 was
suffering a reported and witnessed Cardiac arrest. Officers
determined that Cardiac Puimonary Resusitation was warranted as
~well as administration of Narcan. They administered CPR and
ultimately resusitated the patient. Without the efforts of Officers
mmmm*m and S. Gaiser the patient would have expired.

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police
Brian V. Zméooav




CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT
"~ AWARD

OFFICER SAMUEL GAISER

On June 6,2025, Officers Drew Wessels and Samuel Gaiser
responsed to a medical emergency at 1015 Turner Drive apt C1 in
the City of Caro wherein the patient,Jennifer Wright, age 49 was
suffering a reported and witnessed Cardiac arrest. Officers
determined that Cardiac Pulmonary Resusitation was warranted as
well as administration of Narcan. They administered CPRand
ultimately resusitated the patient. Without the efforts of Officers
essels and S. Gaiser the patient would have expired.

Awarded December 2025 Chief of Police

\C,
N

Brian V. Newcomb -



H,cJ.e CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT ~ ®LA
AWARD

OFFICER BRYAN ESCHENBACHER

In October, 2025, Officer Bryan Eschenbacher responded to an unknown injury crash
at the intersection of Hurds Corner and Deckerville roads in the County of Tuscola. It
was discovered to be a two vehicle crash in which the offending vehicle and driver ran
the stop sign and struck the Putman family which resulted in the death of three
persons and the severe injury to many others. Officer Eschenbacher displayed
courage, decisive actions and a calm determination in directing and requesting
emergency resources at a chaotic crash scene. The actions of Officer Eschenbacher
displayed the best in respresentation of the traditions of the Caro Police Department in
this mass casualty event.

CHIEF OF POLICE
Awarded December 2025 BRIAN V. NEWCOME ik~




CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT ©lA
"~ AWARD

OFFICER DAVID PETERS

Vd

A\\

.

On August 12, 2025, Officer David Peters and Lt. Ryan Avery responded to an
unknown injury crash at the intersection of M 138 and Vassar roads in the County of
Tuscola. It was discovered to be a two vehicle crash in which the offending vehicle and
driver ran the stop sign and struck a van load of Amish residents which resulted in the
death of eight persons and the severe injury to many others. Officer Peters and Lt.
Avery displayed courage, decisive actions and a calm determination in directing and
requesting emergency resources and triage of the injured at a chaotic crash scene.
The actions of Officer Peters and Lt. Avery displayed the best in respresentation of the
traditions of the Caro Palice Department in this mass casualty event.

| CHIEF OF POLICE
Awarded December 2025 BRIAN V. NEWCOMB

2,
g




CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT
AWARD |

LIEUTENANT RYAN AVERY

%?@Vx 25
4

(£

On September-29, 2024 Chief Brian Newcomb, Lieutenant Ryan Avery, Officers David
Peters and Joshua Byron responded to a reported felonious assault with a rifle and a
barricade of the suspect, Sarah Tupper at 230 W. Gilford Rd. in the City of Caro.Lt.
Avery was instrumental in initially setting up an inner perimeter with Officers Peters
and Byron. Lt. Avery showed leadership, initiative and decisive direction in the initial
response to the scene. Chief Newcomb arrived on scene and was able to negotiate
and convince Tupper into exiting the home where she was placed under arrest and the
rifle recovered. Lieutenant Avery and Chief Newcomb were instrumental in bringing a
dangerous and inflamatory incident to a peaceful conclusion and are thereby :o:oqma
with the Caro Police Department Meritorious Service award.

DEPUTY CHIEF OF _UOCOm

Awarded December 2025 ROBERT GAISER




ruvm_a CARQ POLICE DEPARTMENT 7%
AWARD

OFFICER SAMUEL GAISER

Fomuy, ,,,.4 % ey m, %ﬂ.ﬂv, A c,.
RITORIOUS

! i "
% @&w w ﬁﬁ@% ”, @f.ﬁ»%

On April 2, 2024, Officers Samuel Gaisr and David Peters were dispatched to the
Tuscola Sheriff's office in the City of Caro.Officers were to assist Sheriff's Deputies
with a reported domestic assault. Upon arrival, and with their attention to detail and

professionalism, Officers Gaiser and Peters realized that the vehicle being driven by
the reported "victim" of the domestic assault answered the description of a suspect
vehicle in a child kidnapping case wherein a child had been missing for 7 years from
Bay county. Officers Gaiser and Peters assisted Tuscola County in the investigation
and peaceful resolution and recovery of the now 8 year old child from a residence on
Bruisee road. The Mother of the child and her boyfriend were subsequently arrested
_and lodged on multiple criminal charges. Due to their professionalism and attention to .
etail, Officers Gaiser and Peters went above and beyond what would nornally b
ored as a simple domestic violence case and ultimately saved an 8 year from:a life
of isolation and abuse. The Caro Police Department honors them with the Méritorious
Service award.

Awarded December 2025 CHIEFOEPOLICE ~ »~ o

& _ o9 rm_
\\»ruw ! BRIAN V.NEWCOMB & au




N

O>_NO POLICE DEPARTMENT -
AWARD

OFFICER DAVID PETERS

ITORIOUS

On April 2, 2024, Officers Samuel Gaisr and David Peters were diSpatched to the
Tuscola Sheriff's office in the City of Caro.Officers were to assist Sheriff's Deputies
with a reported domestic assault. Upon arrival, and with their attention to detail and
professionalism, Officers Gaiser and Peters realized that the vehicle being driven by
the reported "victim" of the domestic assault answered the description of a suspect

vehicle in a child kidnapping case wherein a child had been missing for 7 years from
Bay county. Officers Gaiser and Peters assisted Tuscola County in the investigation
and peaceful resolution and recovery of the now 8 year old child from a residence on
Bruisee road. The Mother of the child and her boyfriend were subsequently arrested

detail, Officers Gaiser and Peters went above and beyond what would nornally b
@:oqma as a simple domestic <_o_m_._om case and ultimately saved an 8 <mm_, from:

Service award.

Awarded December 2025 CHIEF OF POLICE

and lodged on multiple criminal charges. Due to their professionalism and attention to .

BRIAN V.NEWCOMB




&
T

\s@ Awarded December 2025 yan Avon ; §

ARUPDLLERERARTMEN
SR VAT

AINERBTTAN INENLONE

-

On August 20, 2024, Officer Samuel Gaiser, Deputy Chief Robert Gaiser and Chief Brian
Newcomb responded to a report of a man threatening mass homicide and suicide at 400
South Almer Street in the City of Caro. The suspect, a 64 year old male was despondent
over the pending tax forfeiture of his home. The suspect had disconnected a main gas
pipe in his basement and advised dispatch he was going to blow himself and the city up.
Officers evacuated the area, approached the home and shut off the gas line. It was

apparent that the attempt to light the gas off had failed due to the heavy concentration of
gas in the basement. However, it was apparent to Chief Newcomb, who was negotiating
with the suspect, that he was being overcome and suffocating from the high level of gas

and no oxygen. Chief Newcomb, Deputy Chief R. Gaiser and Officer S. Gaiser
oached the home and were successfully able to remove the suspect from the h

ions placed them in grave danger and ultimately prevented his death a:
¢ o numerous others.

The as

Ryan Avery




&
A A

Chief of Police
\\ﬂﬂ" Awarded December 2025 |

- —¥
ARUPHELERTERRRTMER

’ ALLLL

P U T TR UBERT FRISER

On August 20, 2024, Officer Samuel Gaiser, Deputy Chief Robert Gaiser and Chief Brian
Newcomb responded to a report of a man threatening mass homicide and suicide at 400
South Almer Street in the City of Caro. The suspect, a 64 year old male was despondent
over the pending tax forfeiture of his home. The suspect had disconnected a main gas
pipe in his basement and advised dispatch he was going to blow himself and the city up
Officers evacuated the area, approached the home and shut off the gas line. it was

apparent that the attempt to light the gas off had failed due to the heavy oo:,om::mzo: of
gas in the basement. However, i

, it was apparent to Chief Newcomb, who was negotiating
with the suspect, that he was being overcome and suffocating from the high level of gas

and no oxygen. Chief Newcomb, Deputy Chief R. Gaiser and Officer S. Gaiser
o:ma the home and were successfully able 8 remove the mcman from the h

numerous others.

Brian V. Newcomb




AU PULLEREPRR IMER]
S ARY

JFFIGER BANTUELRATNER]

On August 20, 2024, Officer Samuel Gaiser, Deputy Chief Robert Gaiser and Chief Brian
Newcomb responded to a report of a man threatening mass homicide and suicide at 400
South Almer Street in the City of Caro. The suspect, a 64 year old male was despondent
over the pending tax forfeiture of his home. The suspect had disconnected a main gas
pipe in his basement and advised dispatch he was going to blow himself and the city up.
‘Officers evacuated the area, approached the home and shut off the gas line. It was

apparent that the attempt to light the gas off had failed due to the heavy concentration of
gas in the basement. However, it was apparent to Chief Newcomb, who was negotiating
with the suspect, that he was being overcome and suffocating from the high level of gas

and no oxygen. Chief Newcomb, Deputy Chief R. Gaiser and Officer S. Gaiser
orma §m home and were successfully able 8 remove the m:mumoﬁ from the hc

numerous others.

\Q

Chief of Police

T’%-

Awarded December Nomm Brian V.. Newcomb @F&.ﬂw v, gﬂ\s\rﬁn



\ &
i_—}?

Brian V. Newcomb
Zr " |

.:E._ PO IVEREPRTNEN] |
AL

T4 SIULLEF L

4201 L3z

On August 20, 2024, Officer Samuel Gaiser, Deputy Chief Robert Gaiser and Chief Brian
Newcomb responded to a report of a man threatening mass :oSwoa,m and suicide at 400
South Almer Street in the City of Caro. The suspect, a 64 year old male was despondent
over the pending tax forfeiture of his home. The suspect had disconnected a main gas
pipe in his basement and advised dispatch he was going to blow himself and the city up.

Officers evacuated the area, approached the home and shut off the gas line. it was

apparent that the attempt to light the gas off had failed due to the heavy concentration of

gas in the basement. However, it was apparent to Chief Newcomb, who was negotiating
with the suspect, that he was being overcome and suffocating from the high level of gas
and no oxygen. Chief Newcomb, Deputy Chief R. Gaiser and Officer S. Gaiser
-oached the home and were successfully able to remove the suspect from the h
:osm Emoma them in grave danger and ultimately prevented his Qmmﬁ: a
k. numerous others.

as

Chief of _uo_mom,
Awarded December Nomm




A
Oa
AT A

ARG PHLILERIEE AR HEN | \-«uﬂ)
AR af.#

UFTLER PANUELRATSER

e

On August 20, 2024, Officer Samuel Gaiser, Deputy Chief Robert Gaiser and Chief Brian
Newcomb responded to a report of a man threatening mass homicide and suicide at 400
South Almer Street in the City of Caro. The suspect, a 64 year old male was despondent
over the pending tax forfeiture of his home. The suspect had disconnected a main gas
pipe in his basement and advised dispatch he was going to blow himself and the city up.
Officers evacuated the area, approached the home and shut off the gas line. 1t was
‘apparent that the attempt to light the gas off had failed due to the heavy concentration of
_gas in the basement. However, it was apparent to Chief Newcomb, who was negotiating
with the suspect, that he was being overcome and suffocating from the high level of gas
and no oxygen. Chief Newcomb, Deputy Chief R. Gaiser and Officer S. Gaiser
ached the home and were successfully able to remove the suspect from the ho
Their actions placed them in grave danger and ultimately prevented his death as
e numerous others.

as

Chief of Police
Awarded December 2025 ,_

Brian V. Newcomb @ Lo V, Ve
V —\



Mw.@.- CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT A..a\cﬂ
AWARD |

OFFICER BRYAN ESCHEBACHER

On May 1, 2025, Officers David Peters and Bryan Eschenbacher were dispatched to a
reported domestic violence call at 145 2nd Street in the City of Caro. The suspect was
a 28 year old male who had assaulted his 58 year old Mother. When Officers
attempted to arrest the suspect who had locked himself in his bedroom, he threatened
to shoot them with a bow and arrow if they entered. Officers Peters and Eschenbacher

established a perimeter around the residence and attempted to call the suspect -
outside when he emerged with his bow and arrow and was going to shoot police. The

suspect was eventually apprehended with the use of a Taser. During the standoff,
anm_,m Peters and Eschenbacher displayed courage and restraint in risking their live
to bring a peaceful end to the incident.

| ¢ CHIEF OF POLICE
Awarded December 2025 BRIAN V. NEWCOKIES

A
2
r\\»\ g



"
l

CARO POLICE DEPARTMENT
AWARD

)

OFFICER DAVID PETERS

A

On May 1, 2025, Officers David Peters and Bryan Eschenbacher were dispatched to a
reported domestic violence call at 145 2nd Street in the City of Caro. The suspect was
a 28 year old male who had assaulted his 58 year old Mother. When Officers
attempted to arrest the suspect who had locked himself in his bedroom, he threatened
to shoot them with a bow and arrow if they entered. Officers Peters and Eschenbacher

established a perimeter around the residence and attempted to call the suspect
outside when he emerged with his bow and arrow and was going to shoot police. The
 suspect was eventually apprehended with the use of a Taser. During the standoff,
fficers Peters and Es¢henbacher displayed courage and restraint in risking their liv
“to bring a peaceful end to the incident.

L CHIEF OF POLICE
\.\V Awarded December 2025 BRIAN V. NEWCOMB




61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



To: Caro City Council

From: Paige Rushlo, Downtown Development Authority
Subject: Budget Line-ltem Adjustment — DDA Building Rent
Date: February 11, 2026

I am respectfully requesting Council approval for a budget line-item adjustment due to the
relocation of the DDA office from 253 S. State Street to 429 N. State Street, Suite 206A. As a
result of this move, the office rent has increased from $100 per year to $350 per month.

To accommodate this change, | am requesting approval to transfer $1,775 from the Electric
Budget Line to the DDA Building Rent Budget Line.

The Electric Budget Line (248-728-920-000) currently has $2,525 in unspent funds.
Transferring $1,775 will leave a remaining balance of $750, which is sufficient to cover
electricity expenses at State Street Square. For the current fiscal year, electricity costs at
that location have not exceeded $140 per month.

The originally approved Electric budget total of $3,800 included electricity expenses for the
former DDA office at 253 S. State Street. Utilities at the new office location are included in
the monthly rent, eliminating the need for the previously budgeted electric allocation for

office space.

Request:
Approval to transfer $1,775 from the Electric Budget Line (248-728-920-000) to the DDA
Building Rent Budget Line (248-728-943-001) to cover increased rental costs associated

with the new DDA office location.

Respectfully,
Paige Rushlo
Downtown Development Authority

72



73



74



75



76



2025-26 2025-26 Proposed
Cur Year Cur Year Variance Adjusted Adjustment I
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Budget-Actual Budget Amount

POLICE DEPT
101-301-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,000.00 2,173.04 -173.04 2,600.00 600.00
101-301-853-000 TELEPHONE & PAGERS 3,150.00 2,749.97 400.03 4,700.00 1,550.00
101-301-991-000 LEASE PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL 21,075.00 18,060.25 3,014.75 18,060.25 -3,014.75
101-301-994-000 LEASE PAYMENT - INTEREST 2,375.42 2,977.82 -602.40 2,977.82 602.40
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER
101-371-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 1,845.17 -845.17 2,900.00 1,900.00
101-371-853-000 TELEPHONE 550.00 471.39 78.61 830.00 280.00
COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS
101-703-943-000 #mO,C_E/\_mZ._. RENT 6,128.48 6,716.59 -588.11 10,000.00 3,871.52
PARKS & RECREATION
101-751-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 420.00 305.12 114.88 560.00 140.00
101-751-958-000 MUSIC IN THE PARK - GRANT 5,000.00 7,150.00 -2,150.00 9850.00 4,850.00
TRUNKLINE MAINTENANCE
202-464-943-001 M24 ROUTINE MAINT EQUIP RENTAL 100.00 373.04 -273.04 500.00 400.00
TRUNKLINE SWEEPING
202-466-943-001 M24 SWEEPING EQUIP RENTAL 1,000.00 1,831.68 -831.68 2,500.00 1,500.00
TREE TRIMMING
202-470-702-003 M24 TREE TRIMMING WAGES 200.00 2,270.86 -2,070.86 2,500.00 2,300.00
202-470-715-000 PAYROLL TAXES 46.80 185.57 -138.77 210 163.20
202-470-718-000 RETIREMENT 60.00 180.78 -120.78 250.00 190.00
202-470-943-003 M24 TREE TRIMMING EQUIP RENTAL 0.00 4,463.30 -4,463.30 5,000.00 5,000.00
M81 SNOW/ICE SCRAPING
202-479-702-001 M81 SNOW/ICE HAULING WAGES 100.00 779.85 -679.85 1,000.00 900.00
202-479-943-001 M81 WINTER HAULING EQ RENTAL 1,000.00 1,518.79 -518.79 2,000.00 1,000.00
ADMINISTRATION 0.00
202-483-970-000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 45,000.00 46,716.47 -1,716.47 47,000.00 2,000.00
SIDEWALK
204-442-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 200,000.00 157,374.30 42,625.70 344,000.00 144,000.00
204-442-943-000 EQUIPMENT RENT 3,500.00 4,133.53 -633.53 5,000.00 1,500.00
ALLEYS
204-443-702-000 ALLEYS REPAIR/MAINT WAGES 1,000.00 1,106.80 -106.80 1,500.00 500.00




2025-26 2025-26 Proposed
, Cur Year Cur Year Variance Adjusted Adjustment M
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Budget-Actual Budget Amount
204-443-715-000 PAYROLL TAXES 78.00 80.99 -2.99 125.00 47.00
PARKING LOTS
204-444-801-000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 75,000.00 85,083.50 -10,083.50 160,000.00 85,000.00
ADMIN
204-483-702-000 WAGES ADMIN 4,748.40 6,161.92 -1,413.52 11,000.00 6,251.60
204-483-715-000 PAYROLL TAXES 370.38 44322 -72.84 858.00 487.62
204-483-718-000 RETIREMENT 474.84 612.07 -137.23 1100.00 625.16
FIRE FUND
216-336-715-000 PAYROLL TAXES 6,317.52 7,192.22 -874.70 10800.00 4,482.48
216-336-716-000 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE 2,694.00 12,669.15 -9,975.15 24,350.00 21,656.00
216-336-750-001 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREE'T 1,754.55 1,604.82 149.73 1,900.00 145.45
216-336-853-000 TELEPHONE 1,230.04 1,179.22 50.82 2,150.00 919.96
216-336-991-000 LEASE PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL 16,060.59 17,550.83 -1,490.24 17,550.83 1,490.24
216-336-993-000 LEASE PAYMENT - INTEREST 6,000.00 4,285.40 1,714.60 4,285.40 -1,714.60
DDA FUND
248-728-718-000 RETIREMENT 120.00 243.95 -123.95 450.00 330.00
248-728-921-000 GAS 350.00 338.71 11.29 600.00 250.00
248-728-963-000 PROPERTY TAXES 725.00 732.95 -7.95 732.95 7.95
SEWER OPER/MAINT FUND
METER READING
590-536-943-000 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,854.67 3,502.57 -647.90 6,000.00 3,145.33
SEWER DEPT OM &R
590-540-962-000 TRAVEL & LODGING 1,000.00 1,285.00 -285.00 2,200.00 1,200.00
WATER OPER/MAINT FUND
METER READING
591-536-943-000 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 3,500.00 3,246.77 253.23 6,000.00 2,500.00
OM&R
591-540-740-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00 655.35 -155.35 800.00 300.00
591-540-962-000 TRAVEL & LODGING 200.00 359.38 -159.38 400.00 200.00

297,556.56




79



80



Property Owner's

Parcel Number

Estimate Total Cost

Property Owner's Cost

City Cost

Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Property Address
Tuscola County 125 W Lincoln St Caro Ml 48723 1309 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-0110-00 1,767.00 0.00 1,767.00
Tuscola County 125 W Lincoln St Caro Ml 48723 1285 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-0100-01 14,272.80 0.00 14,272.80
Tuscola County Med Care Fac |440 N State St Caro Ml 48723 1231 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-2110-00 10,431.00 0.00 10,431.00
John & Sharon Slough 25 Northview Dr Caro Ml 48723 25 Northview Dr 050-500-440-6000-01 2,280.00 570.00 1,710.00
Donald Bristow 2854 S Vassar Rd Vassar MI 48768 |Vacant Lot 050-500-438-3400-01 0.00 0.00 0.00
Donald Bristow 2854 S Vassar Rd Vassar Ml 48768  |Vacant Lot 050-500-438-0400-00 $2,760.00 690.00 2,070.00
Gordon Fisher 4133 Rabidue Rd North Street MI 48049 1081 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-2000-01 2,991.00 747.75 2,243.25
NGD Land Company 150 Commerce Ct Gladwin Mi 48624 1075 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-1900-01 969.00 242.25 726.75
Brad Renn & Melissa Davis 1069 Cleaver Rd Caro Mi 48723 1069 Cleaver Rd 050-500-438-0300-01 2,589.00 647.25 1,941.75
Eric Wightman 1051 Cleaver Rd Caro MI 48723 1051 Cleaver Rd 050-500-438-0100-00 1,164.00 291.00 873.00
Debra Marrs 1047 Cleaver Rd Caro Mi 48723 1047 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5200-00 1,230.00 307.50 922.50
Nathan & Taylor Courter 1033 Cleaver Rd Caro M 48723 1033 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5100-00 1,857.00 464.25 1,392.75
R B Morrison Property LLC 205 W Sherman Caro Ml 48723 1027 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5075-00 0.00 0.00 0.00
R B Morrison Property LLC 205 W Sherman Caro Ml 48723 1021 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5075-00 285.00 71.25 213.75
R B Morrison Property LLC 205W Sherman Caro Ml 48723 1017 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5075-00 0.00 0.00 0.00
R B Morrison Property LLC 205 W Sherman Caro Ml 48723 1011 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5075-00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Donald Jaster 570 Arlington Dr Caro Ml 48723 1005 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5000-00 855.00 213.75 641.25
Donald Jaster 570 Arlington Dr Caro Mi 48723 1001 Cleaver Rd 050-034-000-5000-00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Walmart Stores PO Box 8050 Bentonville AR 72716 1121 E Caro Rd 050-035-000-2300-10 870.00 217.50 652.50
Richard & Debra Lipan 326 S State St Caro Mi 48723 326 S State 050-500-607-1000-00 1,026.00 256.50 769.50
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro Ml 48723  |City Alley 1,959.00 0.00 1,959.00
Schapp Properties LLC 161 E Huron Ave Vassar Ml 48768 329 Hamilton 050-500-607-0500-00 8,971.30 2,242.82 6,728.47
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro MI 48723 ADA Ramp @ SE Washington & Ham 1,668.00 0.00 1,668.00
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro Ml 48723 ADA Ramp @ NE Washington & Ham 2,478.00 0.00 2,478.00
Nancy Bennett 330 Hamilton St Caro MI 48723  |330 Hamilton 050-500-608-0500-00 9,240.00 2,310.00 6,930.00
Nancy Bennett Trust 330 Hamilton St Caro gl 48723  |218 W Washington 050-500-608-0650-00 1,987.25 496.81 1,490.44
Nancy Bennett Trust 330 Hamilton St Caro MI 48723 115 Bates 050-500-608-0600-00 4,263.00 1,065.75 3,197.25
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro MI 48723 ADA Ramp @ SE Washington & Bates 1,554.00 0.00 1,554.00
Joslyn Trust 705 W Frank St Caro Ml 48723  |705W Frank 050-500-501-0150-00 114.00 28.50 85.50
Ronald Jones 409 W Washington St |Caro Ml 48723 409 W Washington 050-500-609-0120-00 3,783.12 945.78 2,837.34
Christine Archer 403 W Washington St |Caro MI 48723 {403 W Washington 050-500-609-0130-00 4,684.20 1,171.05 3,513.15
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro M] 48723 |ADA Ramp @ NW Washington & Bates 1,654.00 0.00 1,554.00
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro Ml 48723 ADA Ramp & SW Washington & Bates 3,456.00 0.00 3,456.00
Nicholas Kish 227 W Washington St |Caro MI 48723  |227 W Washington 050-500-610-0900-00 3,420.00 855.00 2,565.00
Prospectors Capital LLC 5205 Longmeadow Rd |Bloomfield Hills Ml 48304 217 W Washington 050-500-610-0950-00 882.00 220.50 661.50

81




Property Owner's

Parcel Number

Estimate Total Cost

Property Owner's Cost

City Cost

Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Property Address

Ruth Kunka 211 W Washington St |Caro Mi 48723  |211 W Washington 050-500-610-0100-00 489.00 122.25 366.75
Austin Raymond 205 W Washington St |Caro Mi 48723 205 W Washington 050-500-610-0110-00 3,108.00 777.00 2,331.00
Geoffrey & Carol Quinn 129 W Washington St |Caro M 48723 201 W Washington 050-500-610-0120-00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Geoffrey & Carol Quinn 129 W Washington St |Caro Mi 48723 129 W Washington 050-500-611-0900-00 1,425.00 356.25 1,068.75
Michael & Mary Andrews 1ELaneden Holly Mi 48442 119 W Washington 050-500-611-1000-00 2,131.92 532.98 1,598.94
Dianna Opperman 115 W Washington Caro Mi 48723 115 W Washington 050-500-611-0950-00 2,115.00 528.75 1,586.25
Blasius Trust 107 W Washington St |Caro M 48723 107 W Washington 050-500-611-0100-00 2,361.00 590.25 1,770.75
Elroy Kosters 426 S State St Caro Ml 48723 Vacant Parcel-W Washington 050-500-611-0150-00 2,479.25 619.81 1,859.44
Mary Hamilton 230 Monroe St Caro M 48723 230 Monroe 050-500-610-0600-00 8,073.00 2,018.25 6,054.75
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro Ml 48723 Vacant Lot - City of Caro 3,762.00 0.00 3,762.00
Nicholas Kish 227 W Washington St |Caro Ml 48723 227 Washington 050-500-610-0900-00 8,215.80 2,053.95 6,161.85
Nancy Bennett Trust 330 Hamilton St Caro Ml 48723 115 Bates 050-500-608-0600-00 4,273.80 1,068.45 3,205.35
Bruce & Kelly Salmons 107 Bates St Caro Ml 48723 107 Bates 050-500-608-0700-00 4,591.20 1,147.80 3,443.40
Brian & Angela Giddings 101 Bates St Caro Ml 48723 101 Bates 050-500-608-0800-00 1,710.00 427.50 1,282.50
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro Mi 48723  |ADA Ramp NW Allen & Fremont 2,785.80 0.00 2,785.80
Kimberly Gonzales 503 Fremont St Caro Ml 48723 503 Fremont 050-500-225-0150-00 4,297.20 1,074.30 3,222.90
Nathaniel Theaker 608 Allen St Caro Ml 48723  |608 Allen 050-500-225-0100-00 4,005.60 1,001.40 3,004.20
Barnes Rentals Il LLC 2909 Chambers Rd Caro M 48723 614 Allen 050-003-100-6700-00 3,766.20 941.55 2,824.65
Jaden Strong 620 Allen St Caro Ml 48723  [620 Allen 050-003-100-4000-00 3,702.00 925.50 2,776.50
Michael Liegel & Briana Torrey |6660 Conrad Rd Caro Ml 48723 626 Allen 050-003-100-0200-00 3,555.00 888.75 2,666.25
Korin Skinner 632 Allen St Caro Mi 48723 632 Allen 050-003-100-3300-00 2,922.00 730.50 2,191.50
Thomas & Susan Seibert 824 W Lincoln St Caro M| 48723 638 Allen 050-003-100-8400-00 3,234.00 808.50 2,425.50
Melissa Hall 103 N Almer St Caro Ml 48723 642 Allen 050-003-100-3900-00 4,128.00 1,032.00 3,096.00
Russell & Rachel Putnam 645 Allen St Caro M 48723 645 Allen 050-500-632-1600-00 3,456.00 864.00 2,592.00
Tad Vandemark 641 Allen St Caro Ml 48723  [641 Allen 050-500-632-1700-00 3,960.00 990.00 2,970.00
Maureen Fealko 635 Allen St Caro M 48723 635 Allen 050-500-632-1800-00 4,170.00 1,042.50 3,127.50
Debra Englehart 625 Allen St Caro Mi 48723 |625 Allen 050-003-100-6000-00 5,897.69 1,474.42 4,423.27
Kenneth Ball Jr 617 Allen St Caro Mi 48723 |617 Allen 050-003-100-7600-00 2,946.00 736.50 2,209.50
Michael Wagner 1582 S Colwood Rd Caro Mi 48723 611 Allen 050-003-100-1800-00 6,867.00 1,716.75 5,150.25
Roger Morris & Jacob Morris 421 Fremont St Caro M 48723 421 Fremont 050-500-632-0300-01 4,389.00 1,097.25 3,291.75
City of Caro 317 S State St Caro M 48723 ADA Ramp SW Allen & Fremont 3,306.00 0.00 3,306.00
207,483.13 39,622.37 167,860.75

Traffic Control 12,000.00 12,000.00

Total 219,483.13 179,860.75

82




83



84



85



86



87



Nevertheless, | continue to move forward and not allow setbacks stop me from wanting
to continue to move forward with projects to improve the City of Caro. Council can look
forward to a review of contractors for the Sherman Road project as that should be our
final big project for this budget, and it will stretch into the next one. As the 2026/2027
budget is in the process of developing, | look forward to seeing what projects we can do
next year to continue to improve the infrastructure and services for the residents and
businesses here in Caro!

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



	20260212133326904.pdf
	20260212133339762.pdf
	20260212133356490.pdf



